
          

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 17, 2020 
10:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

 VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Join by ZOOM ACCESS at: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025012 

Meeting ID: 334 102 5012 
Dial In at: 1 929 436 2866 

September 17, 2020 
10:00 a.m. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public  

G. Approval of Minutes 

1. August 20, 2020 Regular Board & Public Hearing Meeting……………………………………….Page 2 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Planting of Hedge by Pickleball Court……………………………………..Page 8 

2. Discussion Regarding Digging of Well Near Rimini for Pool Geo Thermo System………………Page 10 

a. Consider Approval of License Agreement for Well on CDD Property.……………………….Page 17 

I. Old Business 

1. Further Discussion Regarding Residents Causing/Fixing Erosion Problems 

2. Discussion Regarding Status of Ownership of the Two Verona Walk Main Entrance Ponds 

a. Consider Approval of License Agreement with HOA for Front Lake Fountains……………...Page 23 

3. Discussion Regarding Process of Filling Board Vacancies 

               a.   Consider Resolution No. 2020-07 – Declaring Vacancies in Seat 2 and Seat 4 on the Board…Page 29 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. District Attorney Update 

2. District Engineer Update 

3. Field Inspector Update 

4. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 32 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 

 



 
NOTICE OF VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Verona Walk Community Development District (the 
“District”) will hold a Regular Board Meeting (the “Meeting”) of its Board of Supervisors (the 
“Board”) on September 17, 2020, at 10:00 a.m. to be conducted by telephonic and video 
conferencing communications media technology pursuant to Executive Orders 20-52, 20-69, 20-
112, 20-150, 20-179 and 20-193, issued by Governor DeSantis on March 9, 2020, March 20, 2020, 
April 29, 2020, June 23, 2020,  July 29, 2020, and August 7, 2020, respectively, and pursuant to 
Section 120.54(5)(b)2., Florida Statutes.  The purpose of the Meeting is for the necessary public 
purpose of considering any agenda items related to the District.  At such time the Board is so 
authorized and may consider any business that may properly come before it. 
 
While it is necessary to hold the Meeting utilizing communications media technology due to the 
current COVID-19 public health emergency, the District fully encourages public participation in a 
safe and efficient manner.  Participants may attend the Meeting by accessing the District’s website, 
www.veronawalkcdd.org and clicking on the meeting link you will find on the District’s website, or 
utilizing the following login information: 
 
Join by URL for VIDEO ACCESS at: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025012 
OR 
Call In at: 1-929-436-2866 
Meeting ID: 334 102 5012 
 
A copy of the agenda for the Meeting may be obtained at the offices of the District Manager, c/o 
Special District Services, Inc., at (561) 630-4922 or kdailey@sdsinc.org (the “District Manager’s 
Office”) during normal business hours.  The Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Florida law for special districts.  The Meeting may be continued 
to a date, time, and place to be specified on the record at the Meeting. 
 
Any person requiring special accommodations in order to access and participate in the Meeting 
because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the District Manager’s Office at least 
forty-eight (48) hours prior to the Meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the 
Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) / 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid 
in contacting the District Manager’s Office. 
 
As indicated above, this Meeting will be conducted by media communications technology.  Anyone 
requiring assistance in order to obtain access to the telephonic, video conferencing, or other 
communications media technology being utilized to conduct this Meeting should contact the District 
Manager’s Office at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the Meeting.  Similarly, any person 
requiring or that otherwise may need assistance accessing or participating in this Meeting because of 
a disability or physical impairment is strongly encouraged to contact the District Manager’s Office 
at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance so that arrangements may be made. 
 
Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 
considered at the Meeting is advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that 
accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
       District Manager 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
www.veronawalkcdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:   NAPLES DAILY NEWS    09/09/20 Page 1



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Join by ZOOM ACCESS at: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89839920746 

Meeting ID: 898 3992 0746 
Dial In at: 1 929 436 2866 

AUGUST 20, 2020 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The August 20, 2020, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development District 
was called to order at 10:00 a.m. via Zoom.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
This was not done due to the meeting being held via Zoom. 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on August 3, 2020, and August 10, 2020, as legally required.  
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the virtual attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and 
it was in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairperson Diann Cucinella Present 
Vice Chairman Patrick Clifford Present 
Supervisor Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Supervisor Jack Hogan  Present 
Supervisor Vacant  

 
Staff members in virtual attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services 
General Counsel Greg Urbancic Coleman Yovanovich 

Koester 
District Engineer Terry Cole Hole Montes, Inc. 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Also virtually present were Fusco Armand and Ann McCauley, President of the HOA. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  June 18, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  
 
The June 18, 2020, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Clifford and passed unanimously 
approving the minutes of the June 18, 2020, Regular Board Meeting, as presented.   
 
The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and the Public Hearing was opened. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the Naples 
Daily News on August 3, 2020, and August 10, 2020, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Final Budget 
 
There was no public comment on the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2020-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2020-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 BUDGET.  

 
Ms. Meneely advised that the “Lake Mowing” line item would be changed to “Lake Bank Mowing.” 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Ms. Czubkowski and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2020-04, as presented. 
 
The Public Hearing was then closed and the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS  
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2020-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Meeting 
Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2020-05 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE VERONA 
WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 AND 
SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2020-05, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2020-06 – Adopting an Internal Controls Policy 
 
Resolution No. 2020-06 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-06 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
ADOPTING AN INTERNAL CONTROLS POLICY CONSISTENT 
WITH SECTION 218.33, FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Urbancic recommended that the District have an internal controls policy in place.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Czubkowski, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2020-06, as presented. 
 
 3.  Discussion on Resident Causing/Fixing Erosion Problems 
 
Mr. Hogan stated that the Board started discussing this at the last meeting and as $50,000 had been 
spent on fixing the lake banks, he thought it was time to take the initiative to make residents correct 
the problems that are causing the erosion. 
 
Mr. Hirniak noted the HOA had recently passed a resolution requiring homeowners who cause erosion 
be held responsible for fixing what caused the problem.  Mr. Urbancic furthered that that the CDD 
does not have enforcement powers other than litigation or going through a rulemaking process, which 
other districts that are struggling have done. 
 
Ms. McCauley stated she believed the resolution passed by the HOA and the rule adopted by the ACC 
was for new installations, not on current problems.  Mr. Hirniak added that current problems are 
usually neighbors where two owners are involved in the drainage issue.  Mr. Urbancic suggested 
identifying where washouts are so that maintenance can be frontline for the HOA.  Mr. Hogan stated 
that the CDD handling these issues would make the community pay for problems caused by a few. 
Ms. McCauley suggested counsel for the HOA and CDD work together to come up with a mutual 
resolution.  Mr. Urbancic stated that a rule was passed in another district whereby owners are 
responsible for repairs and the CDD can come in and fix and chargeback the resident, if they do not 
make the necessary repairs.  He went through the process of rulemaking, which can be expensive due 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

to large advertisements.  It was the consensus of the Board for Mr. Urbancic to circulate the document 
from the other district and to keep this item on the agenda for further discussion. 
 
 4.  Discussion on Lake Bank Aesthetic Plantings 
 
Mr. Hogan stated there was discussion going around the community regarding people being allowed 
to plant on the lake banks like Peter Monti did at the owner’s expense.  Mr. Hirniak stated that two 
people have asked and the second request did modest plantings that had died.  Ms. Cucinella stated 
that this is a contentious topic; it is expensive and the fishermen do not like it.  Ms. Czubkowski added 
that no one can monitor how it looks and what looks good is subjective.  She cautioned about allowing 
this and Ms. Cucinella stated that there was not a flood of people asking to do such plantings, so it 
should be left alone at this time. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
K. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  District Attorney Update 
 
Mr. Urbancic advised that the golf cart garage license agreement had been executed between a 
homeowner and the CDD between meetings.  He explained that it is a one-year term, which rolls over 
at $100 a month, which is paid on an annual basis. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Mr. Hogan and passed unanimously ratifying the 
golf cart garage license agreement.   
 
Mr. Urbanic noted that he would to monitor the Governor’s orders regarding electronic meetings, 
which are allowed through October 1st. 
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 
 
Mr. Cole stated he received an email regarding the entry lakes 1&2 and ownership thereof.  He 
indicated it was his understanding that these lakes were lined with bentonite to control the amount of 
infiltration into the groundwater to artificially keep the lake levels up to provide a better aesthetic at 
the main entry.  He explained that the water control of these lakes was at elevation 11.0 NGVD; Lake 
1 drains into lake 2 via piping and Lake 2 discharges into lake 7 (control elevation 6.5 NGVD) via a 
water control structure and piping.  Lakes 1 and 2 are owned by the CDD – they were deeded to the 
CDD on 11/21/12.  Mr. Hogan stated he thought they belonged to the HOA and Ms. Czubkowski 
confirmed they were deeded to the CDD.   Mr. Hirniak stated that there was maintenance of the lakes 
by the CDD, but the HOA does such.  Ms. Cucinella indicated the District had discussed this 
extensively last year and the lakes were designated as decorative.  Mr. Hirniak stated he believed 
there was no impact on the function of the stormwater system.  Ms. Czubkowski noted that more 
information is needed from the engineer, particularly since the fountains are fixed assets and there 
may be further agreements regarding same.  Mr. Hogan indicated he had never seen an agreement 
with the CDD for the fountains and was told they were the ownership of the HOA.  It was the 
consensus of the Board for the attorney and engineer to do more research on the issue and bring the 
information back to an upcoming meeting. 

Page 5



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 
 
Mr. Hirniak stated that he was asked to obtain lake bank trimming proposals and received one from 
Clarke for $8,500 and one from Duval Landscape Maintenance for $7,515.  Ms. Czubkowski stated 
Clarke had done an outstanding job the last time.  Ms. Cucinella added that Duval had issues as well 
as a lack of manpower.   
 
After a brief discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Hogan, seconded by Ms. Czubkowski and passed 
unanimously awarding the lake bank trimming contract to Clarke. 
 
Mr. Hirniak stated that Chris Ramsey with the HOA’s landscaping company had undertaken plantings 
by the pickleball court on CDD property with no prior review or approval.  Ms. Cucinella stated this 
was upsetting as the Board’s vote was to plant what you want as long as it was not on CDD land.  Mr. 
Hogan stated that the HOA motion for the plantings excluded CDD property.  Mr. Hirniak indicated 
that the landscaper may not have known it was CDD property and added that the plantings were 
acceptable, except for the boulders and he suggested asking Mr. Ramsey for a different design.  Ms. 
Czubkowski stated she believed removing the rocks would be detrimental to the bank, so she 
suggested a method to contain the stones so they do not erode the banks.  Ms. Cucinella agreed that 
the stones should have a barrier and asked that the HOA be reminded that any future plantings on 
CDD property requires the District’s approval.  Mr. Hogan stated that this was just another reason 
why the two boards need an agreement.  Ms. McCauley stated that it was essential that the HOA and 
the CDD communicate to prevent this from happening again.  She further noted that there was no bad 
intent with what had happened. 
 
 4.  District Manager Update 
 a. Financials 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the financials.  There were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
Ms. Meneely stated that the District had recently received a resume from Richard Dombal, but since 
a process had not been discussed as of yet, she requested that the Board decide on what they would 
like to do regarding the vacancy.  Mr. Hogan indicated there may be other interest and he would like 
to see the Board go out to the community in terms of interest.  Mr. Urbancic went over the process 
and the criteria for becoming a Board Member.  Ms. Meneely stated that she had a vacancy 
announcement letter that could go out to residents.  Ms. Cucinella suggested the letter be sent to the 
Town Manager.  It was consensus of the Board to do so with resumes to be returned by October 1. 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the upcoming meeting schedule of September 17, October 15 and November 
19. 
 
L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 1.  Update on CDD Property Use Applications 
 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that the agenda included a spreadsheet she had put together on the applications 
and things have been working well.  She added that she gets the proper insurance certificates for each 
individual property and does not know what to do with them.  Mr. Urbancic advised that the certificate 

Page 6



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

is a general policy that covers the District as an additional insured, so as long as it is the same 
contractor, one certificate is fine for the records. 
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 11:20 a.m. on a motion made by Mr. Clifford, seconded by Ms. Czubkowski and passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 7



Page 8



 

Page 9



Page 10



 

 

Rimini Way TownHomes 

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



- 1 - 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered as of this    of 
    , 2020 (“Effective Date”), by and between VERONAWALK 
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not-for-profit corporation (the “Association”) and 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a community development district 
established and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the “District”). 
 
 R E C I T A L S: 

 
WHEREAS, the District is the owner of that certain real property legally described as follows: Tract 

B, Veronawalk Town Homes Phase 2, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 42, Page 44 of the 
Public Records of Collier County, Florida (the “Tract B”); and  

 
WHEREAS, Tract B contains a lake and other stormwater management facilities that are a part of the 

District’s stormwater management system; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Association has requested permission from the District to install a well on a portion 

of Tract B for geothermal pumps that being installed for the Association’s community pool (the “Well”); and  
 
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the District desires to grant to the Association 

a non-exclusive, revocable license to install and operate a well on Tract B.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true, correct and are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
2. License.  Subject to all the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the District 

hereby grants to the Association a revocable, non-exclusive license for the express and limited purpose of 
installing, operating, and maintaining the Well on a portion of Tract B specified herein (the “Activity”).  The 
Well may only be located within the area depicted on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof 
(the “Well Location”).  The Well Location shall not be relocated, modified or expanded in any way without 
the prior written approval of the District, which approval may be withheld in the District’s sole and exclusive 
discretion.  Further, the Association shall only use the license granted herein for the Activity and shall not use 
Tract B for any other purpose without the prior, written approval of the District, which approval may be 
withheld by the District in the District’s sole and exclusive discretion.  The Activity shall comply at all times 
with applicable laws, codes, rules, regulations, ordinances, and permits.  The Activity shall not be conducted 
in any manner that would interfere with the normal operation of the District’s stormwater management system 
pursuant to applicable permits.  The Well installed by the Association shall be maintained by the Association 
in good condition and repair and in proper working order.  Further, all maintenance and repair of the Well by 
the Association shall be conducted at all times with appropriately licensed contractors.  The Association shall 
be solely responsible for the cost of any and all maintenance and repair of the Well and any utilities necessary 
to conduct the Activity.   
 

3. Compensation.  No license fee shall be paid by the Association to the District for the rights 
or privileges granted in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the same, the Association shall be solely responsible 
for all costs and expenses set forth in this Agreement.   

 
4. Damage.  The Association shall not, by conducting the Activity, cause damage to Tract B.  

In the event that the exercise by the Association of the license rights granted herein causes or otherwise results 

Page 17



- 2 - 

in any damage to Tract B, including any improvements or landscaping located thereon, then within fifteen 
(15) days after the District’s written notice to the Association of such damage, the Association shall, at the 
Association’s sole cost and expense, take all steps necessary to repair all of such damage and to return that 
portion of Tract B to its condition as existed prior to such damage.   
 

5. Effective Date/Term.  The initial term of this Agreement (the “Initial Term”) shall 
commence upon the Effective Date and shall terminate five (5) years thereafter (“Termination Date”).   
Notwithstanding such Termination Date, this Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional five -
year period at the end of the Initial Term and thereafter on each fifth (5th) anniversary of the Effective Date 
unless and until either party provides the other party at ninety (90) days’ prior written notice of its intent not 
to renew.   

 
6. Default/Termination.  Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon 

written notice to other party that said other party has defaulted in the performance of any of the obligations 
imposed on it under this Agreement and said defaulting party does not, after being notified of the existence of 
default, cure said default within fifteen (15) days of the defaulting party’s receipt of notice.  Further, either 
party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice to other party.  
Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section 6 or other provision contained in 
this Agreement and regardless of the party initiating the termination, the Association shall remain responsible 
for repairing any damage to Tract B caused by the Association exercising its license rights hereunder prior to 
the termination.  Upon expiration or any termination of this Agreement, the Association shall immediately 
cease the Activity, remove the Well and all equipment related thereto from Tract B, and return Tract B to the 
condition it existed prior to the Association’s use pursuant to this Agreement.   

 
7. Insurance.   
 

a. Prior to any entry by the Association upon any portion of Tract B, the Association 
will deliver to the District a certificate of insurance evidencing the following insurance policies (collectively, 
the “Policies”): (i) a commercial general liability insurance policy with limits of not less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single limit per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) 
general aggregate, insuring against claims for personal injury, death, and/or property damage occasioned by 
accidents occurring on Tract B and relating to or arising out of the Activity and naming the District as an 
additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis; and (ii) worker’s compensation insurance  in 
accordance with applicable law.  The Policies shall contain a waiver of the right of subrogation against the 
District.  All Policies shall contain a provision that they shall not be amended or terminated prior to the date 
which is thirty (30) days’ after delivery of written notice of such amendment or termination to the District.  
The Association shall maintain the Policies in full force and effect (at its sole expense) at all times during 
which this Agreement remains in effect.   

 
b. The Association further agrees to require by written contract any contractor or 

subcontractors hired or engaged by the Association to perform any installation, repair or maintenance of the 
Well hereunder to procure and maintain, until the completion of the contractor’s or subcontractor’s work, 
insurance of the types and to the limits specified in this Section and with the District as a named insured unless 
such insurance requirements for the contractor or subcontractor are expressly modified or waived in writing 
by the District. 

 
8. Assumption of Risk; Indemnification.  The Association acknowledges and agrees that the 

Activity and any entry upon Tract B may involve the risk of injury, death, and/or damage to property and is 
being performed willingly and voluntarily by the Association.  The Association hereby assumes all risks 
related to the Activity and entry upon Tract B.  In addition, as material consideration for the District granting 
to the Association the license set forth herein, the Association shall and hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, 

Page 18



- 3 - 

and hold harmless the District and its supervisors, manager, officers, board members, employees, and agents 
(collectively, “Indemnified Parties”) from and against any loss, claim, damage, or cost (including, without 
limitation, attorneys’ fees and expenses at trial or on appeal) incurred by or asserted against any or all the 
Indemnified Parties and arising out of or related to the Association’s exercise of its rights under this 
Agreement or otherwise arising out of or related to the Activity.  The obligations of the Association to 
indemnify, defend, and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless pursuant to this paragraph shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
9. Notices.  Any notice required to be given hereunder, shall be in writing, and may be given 

by personal delivery; regular United States mail; commercial next business day courier service (such as FedEx 
or UPS); or by email.  Any notice to be given hereunder shall be sent to the following addresses:  

  
 If to the District:  Verona Walk Community Development District 

c/o Special District Services, Inc. 
Attn: Kathleen Dailey, District Manager 
3501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

    Email: kdailey@sdsinc.org  
 
 With a copy to:  Coleman, Yovanovich & Koester, P.A.  
    Attn: Gregory L. Urbancic, Esq. 
    4001 Tamiami Trail N., Suite 300 
    Naples, FL 34103 
    Email: gurbancic@cyklawfirm.com 
 
 If to the Association: VeronaWalk Homeowners Association, Inc. 
    Attn: Ashley Ortiz, LCAM, General Manager 
    8090 Sorrento Lane, Suite 1 
    Naples, FL 34114  
    Email: ashley@kwpmc.com        
 

Any notice, request or other communication shall be deemed to be given: (1) upon receipt or refusal to accept, 
in the case of hand delivery or commercial next business day courier service; (2) upon transmission in the 
case of email; or (3) three (3) days following deposit with the U.S. Postal Service.  The addressees and 
addresses for the purpose of this Section may be changed by any party by giving written notice of such change 
to the other party in the manner provided herein.   

 
10. License, Not Lease; No Recording.  It is acknowledged and stipulated by and between the 

parties hereto that this Agreement shall not be deemed a lease of Tract B by the Association but rather a 
license granted to the Association by the District for the activity under the terms and conditions stated herein.  
Neither this Agreement nor a memorandum thereof shall be recorded in the Public Records.   

 
11. Liens and Claims.  The Association shall promptly and properly pay for all contractors 

retained, labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform any installation, operation 
and maintenance under this Agreement.  The Association shall keep Tract B and any other District property 
free from any construction, materialmen’s or mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens 
and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason of the Association’s actions 
pursuant to this Agreement, and the Association shall immediately discharge any such claim or lien. 

 
 

Page 19



- 4 - 

 11. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 
respective heirs, successors, permitted assigns and legal representatives of the parties hereto.  This Agreement 
shall not be assigned or transferred by the Association without the District’s prior written approval, which 
approval may be withheld at the District’s sole and exclusive discretion.  This Agreement embodies the entire 
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter herein, and the terms hereof control over and 
supersede all prior understandings.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended in any respect other than 
by written instrument signed by both parties hereto.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two 
(2) or more counterparts, each of which shall deemed to be original, but all or which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  In the event that either party is required to enforce this Agreement by court 
proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the 
other all costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, alternate dispute resolution, or 
appellate proceedings.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of 
the State of Florida.  The venue for any litigation involving this Agreement shall exclusively lie in Collier 
County, Florida. 

 
{Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signatures appear on the following page.} 

  

Page 20



- 5 - 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above.   
 
 
       ASSOCIATION:     
    

VERONAWALK HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC.,  

WITNESSES:      a Florida not-for-profit corporation 
        
      
Print Name:     
       By:      
                   Ann McCauley, President 
Print Name:     
 
 
       
 
 
 
        DISTRICT: 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY  
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
ATTEST: 
 
       By:         
Kathleen Dailey, Secretary                              Diann Cucinella, Chair 
  

Page 21



- 6 - 

Exhibit “A” 
Well Location 

 
 
 
  

Page 22



- 1 -

LICENSE AGREEMENT

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered as of this of
, 2020 (“Effective Date”), by and between VERONAWALK 

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not-for-profit corporation (the “Association”) and
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a community development district 
established and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the “District”).

R E C I T A L S:

WHEREAS, the District is the owner of that certain real property containing a lake and designated as 
Lake #1 on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (“Lake #1”) and legally described as Tract P,
Veronawalk Phase 1A, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 41, Page 1 of the Public Records of 
Collier County, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the District is the owner of that certain real property containing a lake and designated as 
Lake #2 on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (“Lake #2”) and legally described as Tract G,
Veronawalk Phase 4A, according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 47, Page 5 of the Public Records of 
Collier County, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, Lake #1 and Lake #2 are maintained by the District and are part of the District’s
stormwater management system; and 

WHEREAS, the Association desires to place and maintain a fountain in Lake #1 and a fountain in 
Lake #2; and 

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the District desires to grant to the Association 
a non-exclusive, revocable license for the operation of a fountain in Lake #1 and a fountain in Lake #2.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true, correct and are incorporated herein by 
reference.

2. License. Subject to all the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the District 
hereby grants to the Association a revocable, non-exclusive license for the express and limited purpose of 
installing, operating, and maintaining one (1) fountain in Lake #1 and one (1) fountain in Lake #2 (the 
“Activity”). The Association shall only use the license granted herein for the Activity and shall not use Lake 
#1 and Lake #2 for any other purpose without the prior, written approval of the District, which approval may 
be withheld by the District in the District’s sole and exclusive discretion. The Activity shall comply at all 
times with applicable laws, codes, rules, regulations, ordinances, and permits.  The Activity shall not be 
conducted in any manner that would interfere with the normal operation of the District’s stormwater 
management system pursuant to applicable permits. Any fountain installed by the Association shall be 
maintained by the Association in good condition and repair and in proper working order.  Further, all 
maintenance and repair of the fountains by the Association shall be conducted at all times with appropriately 
licensed contractors. The Association shall be solely responsible for the cost of any and all maintenance and 
repair of the fountains and any utilities necessary to conduct the Activity.  

3. Compensation. No license fee shall be paid by the Association to the District for the rights 
or privileges granted in this Agreement. Notwithstanding the same, the Association shall be solely responsible 
for all costs and expenses set forth in this Agreement.  

Page 23



- 2 -

4. Damage. The Association shall not, by conducting the Activity, cause damage to Lake #1 or 
Lake #2. In the event that the exercise by the Association of the license rights granted herein causes or 
otherwise results in any damage to Lake #1 or Lake #2, including any improvements or landscaping located 
thereon, then within fifteen (15) days after the District’s written notice to the Association of such damage, the 
Association shall, at the Association’s sole cost and expense, take all steps necessary to repair all of such 
damage and to return that portion of Lake #1 or Lake #2, as applicable, to its condition as existed prior to such 
damage.  

5. Effective Date/Term. The initial term of this Agreement (the “Initial Term”) shall 
commence upon the Effective Date and shall terminate five (5) years thereafter (“Termination Date”).   
Notwithstanding such Termination Date, this Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional five -
year period at the end of the Initial Term and thereafter on each fifth (5th) anniversary of the Effective Date 
unless and until either party provides the other party at ninety (90) days’ prior written notice of its intent not 
to renew.  

6. Default/Termination. Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon 
written notice to other party that said other party has defaulted in the performance of any of the obligations 
imposed on it under this Agreement and said defaulting party does not, after being notified of the existence of 
default, cure said default within fifteen (15) days of the defaulting party’s receipt of notice. Further, either 
party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice to other party.
Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section 6 or other provision contained in 
this Agreement and regardless of the party initiating the termination, the Association shall remain responsible 
for repairing any damage to Lake #1 or Lake #2 caused by the Association exercising its license rights 
hereunder prior to the termination.  Upon expiration or any termination of this Agreement, the Association 
shall immediately cease the Activity, remove the fountains and all equipment related thereto from Lake #1
and Lake #2, and return Lake #1 and Lake #2 to their condition prior to the Association’s use pursuant to this 
Agreement.

7. Insurance.  Prior to any entry by the Association upon any portion of Lake #1 or Lake #2, the 
Association will deliver to the District a certificate of insurance evidencing the following insurance policies 
(collectively, the “Policies”): (i) a commercial general liability insurance policy with limits of not less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) general 
aggregate, combined single limit, insuring against claims for personal injury, death, and/or property damage 
occasioned by accidents occurring on Lake #1 and Lake #2 and relating to or arising out of the Activity and 
naming the District as an additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis; and (ii) worker’s 
compensation insurance  in accordance with applicable law.  The Policies shall contain a waiver of the right 
of subrogation against the District.  All Policies shall contain a provision that they shall not be amended or 
terminated prior to the date that is thirty (30) days after delivery of written notice of such amendment or 
termination to the District.  The Association shall maintain the Policies in full force and effect (at its sole 
expense) at all times during which this Agreement remains in effect.

8. Assumption of Risk; Indemnification. The Association acknowledges and agrees that the 
Activity and any entry upon Lake #1 and/or Lake #2 may involve the risk of injury, death, and/or damage to 
property and is being performed willingly and voluntarily by the Association. The Association hereby 
assumes all risks related to the Activity and entry upon Lake #1 and/or Lake #2.  In addition, as material 
consideration for the District granting to the Association the license set forth herein, the Association shall and 
hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District and its supervisors, manager, officers, 
board members, employees, and agents (collectively, “Indemnified Parties”) from and against any loss, 
claim, damage, or cost (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and expenses at trial or on appeal) 
incurred by or asserted against any or all the Indemnified Parties and arising out of or related to the 

Page 24



- 3 -

Association’s exercise of its rights under this Agreement or otherwise arising out of or related to the Activity.  
The obligations of the Association to indemnify, defend, and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless pursuant 
to this paragraph shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

9. Notices. Any notice required to be given hereunder, shall be in writing, and may be given 
by personal delivery; regular United States mail; commercial next business day courier service (such as FedEx 
or UPS); or by email.  Any notice to be given hereunder shall be sent to the following addresses: 

If to the District: Verona Walk Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
Attn: Kathleen Dailey, District Manager
3501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410
Email: kdailey@sdsinc.org

With a copy to: Coleman, Yovanovich & Koester, P.A. 
Attn: Gregory L. Urbancic, Esq.
4001 Tamiami Trail N., Suite 300
Naples, FL 34103
Email: gurbancic@cyklawfirm.com

If to the Association: VeronaWalk Homeowners Association, Inc.
8090 Sorrento Lane, Suite 1
Naples, FL 34114
Email: ashley@kwpmc.com

Any notice, request or other communication shall be deemed to be given: (1) upon receipt or refusal to accept, 
in the case of hand delivery or commercial next business day courier service; (2) upon transmission in the 
case of email; or (3) three (3) days following deposit with the U.S. Postal Service.  The addressees and 
addresses for the purpose of this Section may be changed by any party by giving written notice of such change 
to the other party in the manner provided herein.  

10. License, Not Lease; No Recording.  It is acknowledged and stipulated by and between the 
parties hereto that this Agreement shall not be deemed a lease of Lake #1 or Lake #2 by the Association but 
rather a license granted to the Association by the District for the activity under the terms and conditions stated 
herein. Neither this Agreement nor a memorandum thereof shall be recorded in the Public Records.  

11. Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 
respective heirs, successors, permitted assigns and legal representatives of the parties hereto.  This Agreement 
shall not be assigned or transferred by the Association without the District’s prior written approval, which 
approval may be withheld at the District’s sole and exclusive discretion. This Agreement embodies the entire 
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter herein, and the terms hereof control over and 
supersede all prior understandings.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended in any respect other than 
by written instrument signed by both parties hereto.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two 
(2) or more counterparts, each of which shall deemed to be original, but all or which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. In the event that either party is required to enforce this Agreement by court 
proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the 
other all costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, alternate dispute resolution, or 
appellate proceedings. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of 
the State of Florida.  The venue for any litigation involving this Agreement shall exclusively lie in Collier 
County, Florida.

Page 25



- 4 -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth above.

ASSOCIATION:

VERONAWALK HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC.,

WITNESSES: a Florida not-for-profit corporation

Print Name:
By:
            Ann McCauley, President

Print Name:

DISTRICT:

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ATTEST:

By: 
Kathleen Dailey, Secretary Diann Cucinella, Chair

Page 26



Exhibit “A”
Lake #1 and Lake #2 Locations

Page 27



PORTOFINO CT.
O C

ORVIETO CT.

NOVARA CT

ROZZINI LN.
NI L

JU
LI

A 
LN

.
N

KARINA CT.

BE
NE

LL
I C

T.
I C

BENELLI CT.

KA
RI

NA
 C

T.
ANORMANI LN.O

FIRENZE W
AY

EMILIA LANE

M
AR

C
O

N
I C

T

XENIA LANE

YASMINA

VALENTINA CT.

WILFREDO CT.

VE
R

O
N

AW
AL

K 
C

IR
C

LE
C

K
CC

K K
OO

N
O

NNNN

DEIMILLE CT.

BORBONI

ALESSANDRIA CT.

ZURIGO LN.

ERICE CT.

SALERNO
 CT.

O
C

VERDUCCI CT.
CT

TO
SC

AN
A C

T.

TOMMASI CT.T.

VERONAWALK CIRCLE

SO
R

R
EN

TO
 L

N

C
H

IA
N

TI
 L

C
O

LL
IE

R
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D

C
H

IA
N

TI
 L

N

JO
SE

FA
 W

SE
W

AF
SS

OOO

 WAYJOSEFA   AAAAAAA 

SO
R

R
EN

TO
 L

N

IONIO CT.

HERNANDO CT.

GARIVALDI CT.

C
O

LL
IE

R
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D

RAVELLO CT.

VE
R

O
N

AW
AL

K 
C

IR
C

LEE

LE
O

PA
RD

I C
T.

SICILIA CT.

SABAL PALM ROAD

CT.C

TOWNWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOWOOOOOOWWWWOOOTOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOTTTOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOTTTTTTOTOOOOOTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOTOOOOTTTTTOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT
CENTERTETTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNNNNNNTNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNTTTTNNNNNNNNNNNTTNTTNNTTTNNNNTTTNNNNNNNTTNNTTNNTTNNNTTNEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTEETTTTTTTTTTTTEETTTTTTTTTTTTETTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNTTTNNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNCCC RRRRERREECCCCCCCCCC NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

C.S. #1A/7A
GRATE: = 9.90

C.S. #1B/7A
GRATE: = 9.90

C.S. #2/7A
GRATE: = 10.69

DISCHARGE
OUTLET

DISCHARGE
OUTLET

DISCHARGE
OUTLET

DRAINAGE
BASIN LINE

DRAINAGE
BASIN LINE

DRAINAGE
BASIN LINEVERONAWALK BOUNDARY

VERONAWALK
BOUNDARY

VERONAWALK BOUNDARY

B-2

B-3

B-4

B-5

B-6

B-7
B-8

B-14

B-12

B-1

B-13

B-10
B-9

B-15

16

-17

B-18B-20

B-21

B-19

B 22

B-2

B-24

B-29

B-1

B-2

B-26

B-27

B-28

M
IN

O
RI

M
IN

O
RI

M
IN

O
RII RI RI RI

 L
N.

IL
N.

RI
LN IIII RI RI RI RI RI RIII RI RII RIIIIIIIIIII RII RIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI

FERRARA CT..

QUERCE CT.

PALERMO CT.

PAALA

GENOVA CT.

SO
R

R
EN

TO
 LN

EN
TTO

EEEENEEENNNNN
TTTOOO

R
EN

R
EEEEN

T
NN

T
N

TOOTTO

VERONAWALK BLVD.
ROOROERR NANAV

BK BB
VEVVVEVVE

BBKKKKNANAANAONNONON

LAKE
####24

LLLAKE
#####21

LLLAKE
#25

LAKE
# 3####23

LLLAKE
#####22

LAKE
# 0#20

LAKE
#18

LAKE
# 9#19

LAKE
#12

LAKE
# 6#16

###LAKE #14

E
4

LAKE
# 3#13

LAKE
# 3#13

LAK
##1

LAKE
#9#9

LAKE

LAKE
#88#8

LAKE
#6

LLLAKE
####4

LAKE
#3

LAKE #5LL #5##55LAKE #5

LAKE
##7

LAKE
#2

LAKE
##1

LAKE
##17

LAKE
#15

LAKE
#399#39

LAKE
#37

LAKE
#3#34

LAKE #38

#3663LAKE #36

#35LAKE #35

#33# 333##LAKE #33

#3##33LAKE #31

LAKE
#29

LAKE
#28

LAKE
#27

LAKE
#30##30

LLLAKE
#32

LLLAKE
# 0### 0#40

SPRESERVE AREA

PRESERVE AREAPRESERVE AREA

UMBERTO CT.

LAK

E

B-

B-1

R
O

A
VER

NL

5

23

7

LLLLLLLLLLLLLA

B 13

1

B-20

B-22

LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLAK
#####14

KE
11

TO
LN

NW
AYYA

 WAYJOSEFA   A AAAA

LAKE
# 0#10

LAKE
##14

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
A

NNNNNNN
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

NN

LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLALLLLLLLAAALLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL

LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLALLLLLLLLLLLLLL

VERONAWALK BLVD.

ASO
R

R
EN

TO
 L

N
TOT

NNN
T

N
TT

ENNNNNNNN

W
AYYYY

W

VERONAWALK CIRCLEEEEELELELELECLCLCLCLCCRCRCRIRCICCK CKKKLKALALAAAAWAWWAWAWWWWWWAWAAWAWANANANANANNNNONOONONOORORORORORRRREREREREREVEVEEVEVVVVVVV

EELELEEELLLELEEECCCLCLLELEEE
RCRCCCCLCLLL
RRRCRCCCL

CICIIRIRCCCCKKK CK C
LKLKKKAAALALAAALAL

WAWAAAWWWWWAWA
AWAWAWWWAWAAA
AAAAWAWWWWW

NNNANAAWAWAWW
ONONNANNANAAA
OOOOONONNANA

RRROROONONNN
ERERROROOOOO
EEERERRRRORO

VVVEVEERERRRVVVEVEEEVVVVVEVEVVVV

CCCC
ALK CIRCLCIRCCRIRCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC

LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLALK CIRCLLCL
RCIRCCKLA

LL
RCRCCCL
IRIRCCCC

LLAA
CCCCCCCCCCC

RI RI RII RI RIIIIIIIIIII RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RII RI RIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RII RI RIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI RI

A 
C

A
C

VERONAWALK SUMMARY
TOTAL PROJECT AREA 754.32 ACRES
TOTAL UNITS 1,920

TOTAL LAKE AREA 115.16 ACRES
TOTAL LAKE PERIMETER 22.45 MILES
LITTORAL ZONES 427,786 S.F.

LEGEND

LITTORAL AREA

BASIN LINE

LAKE INTERCONNECT PIPES

1A

B

C

D

LETTER DATEREVISIONS

DATE

HORIZONTAL SCALE

DATE

DATE

VERTICAL SCALE

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

DESIGNED BY

OF

SHEET NO.PROJECT NO.

REFERENCE NO. DRAWING NO.
950 Encore Way

Naples, FL. 34110
Phone: (941) 254-2000

Florida Certificate of
Authorization No.1772

VERONAWALK
COMMUNITY

1

THESE DRAWINGS ARE NOT
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION
UNLESS SIGNED BELOW:

DATE

BRIDGE

VERONAWALK BOUNDARY

Page 28



1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 2020-07    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT DECLARING VACANCIES IN SEAT 2 AND 
SEAT 4 ON THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 190.006(3)(b), FLORIDA STATUTES; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Verona Walk Community Development District (the “District”) is a local 
unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 3, 2020 two (2) members of the Board of Supervisors (the 

“Board”) of the District were to be elected by the Qualified Electors of the District, as that term is 
defined in Section 190.003, Florida Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Florida law, there was a qualifying period for candidates 

intending to run for the seats on the Board up for election; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the close of the qualifying period no Qualified Elector qualified to run for 

either of the two (2) seats available for election by the Qualified Electors of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes, the Board shall declare 

such unfilled seats as vacant, effective the second Tuesday following the general election; and 
 
WHEREAS, Qualified Electors are to be appointed to the vacant seats within ninety (90) 

days thereafter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is in the best interests of the District to adopt this 

Resolution declaring those seats that were available for election as vacant as of November 17, 
2020. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  DECLARATION OF VACANCY.  The following seats are hereby 
declared vacant effective as of November 17, 2020: 
 
  Seat 2 (currently vacant)  
  Seat 4  (currently held by Diann Cucinella) 
 

Page 29



2 of 2 

 SECTION 2.  APPOINTMENT/INCUMBENTS.  Pursuant to Section 190.006(3)(b), 
Florida Statutes the Board shall appoint a Qualified Elector to fill each vacancy stated in Section 
1 on or before February 15, 2021.  Until such time as the Board nominates Qualified Electors to 
fill the vacancies declared in Section 1 above, the incumbent Board member in each respective 
seat shall remain in office. 
 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this Resolution be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a 
section of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that 
such other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon 
the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 4.  CONFLICTS.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to 
the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 
 

SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its 
adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of September, 2020. 
 
 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
ATTEST: 
 
 
             
Kathleen Dailey, Secretary    Diann Cucinella, Chair 
 
 
 

Page 30



September 1, 2020 

Kathleen Daily Meneely 
District Manager 
 
Dear Ms. Meneely, 

This letter is in response to your solicitation for individuals interested in serving on 
the Board of Supervisors of Verona Walk Community Development District. 

I am a full-time resident, living at 8059 Wilfredo Ct; I am over the age of 18, a 
citizen of the United States, a legal resident of Florida and a registered voter.   

My educational background includes a B.S in Engineering from Boston University 
and a Master of Business Administration from Suffolk University, Boston. 

During my forty-five years of work experience, I held various managerial and 
executive positions in the transportation industry.  For the last fifteen years prior to 
retirement, I worked as a management consultant for multinational businesses in 
this country and Europe; implementing continuous improvement programs.   

I have been a life-long hobby gardener and fisherman with an interest in 
environmental matters.  Since retiring and relocating to Naples in 2015, I have had 
the opportunity to formalize my knowledge in this area, training as both a Collier 
County Master Gardener and a Florida Master Naturalist.  I am an instructor with 
the Green Industry Best Management Practices Program sponsored by FDACS and 
hold a Limited Commercial Fertilizer Applicators License.   

In 2020, I became a Certified Horticulturalist by the Florida Nursery Growers and 
Landscapers Association (FNGLA).   

I am active with the Greenscape Alliance, an industry and academic environmental 
group focused on maintaining clear water resources. 

I look forward to hearing from you. 

 

Regards, 
Peter C. Monti 
Peter C. Monti  

Page 31



Verona Walk
Community Development District

 Financial Report For
 August 2020

Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35


	Verona Walk Community Development District - September 17, 2020 Regular Board Meetng Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	August 20, 2020 Regular Board & Public Hearing Meeting Minutes
	Discussion Regarding Planting of Hedge by Pickleball Court
	Discussion Regarding Digging of Well Near Rimini for Pool Geo Thermo System
	Consider Approval of License Agreement for Well on CDD Property

	Consider Resolution No. 2020-07 – Declaring Vacancies in Seat 2 and Seat 4 on the Board
	Financials




